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Vice Chairperson Rohr: Opened the Hearing on HB 1336 
 
Representative Daniel Johnson: Introduced HB 1336 Read supporting testimony, See 
attachment 1 
(0:01:00-0:05:54) 
 
Representative Greg Westlind: What is the length of time it takes to abort a baby after 
taking this drug?  If so, what is the length of time to intervene with another drug?  If so, is 
there any physical damage recorded damage or chance of damaging the babies’ health after 
both of these drugs have been administered? 
 
Rep. Johnson: It varies.  The first chemical administered is Mifepristone and progesterone 
will reverse. The length of time a baby has been save has been immediate to 70 hours. 
Survivability rate after reversal is 2/3 of the cases.   If both chemicals are administered, the 
abortion will occur within a week’s timeframe. 
 
Discussion regarding need of additional testimony copies 
 
Representative Mary Schneider:  Do you plan on providing medical testimony?  I’m trying 
to determine who to direct medical questions to. 
(0:07:59) 
 
Rep. Johnson:  I do have some legal minds that will be testifying. Regretfully, I do not have 
a doctor present. I was in contact with Dr. Gary Obrich, OB GYN of the Bismarck area, and 
he could not attend today.  He did state he would definitely make the Senate hearing when 
we get this through. 
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Rep. Schneider: Are you basing the medical statements that we’ve heard in your testimony 
on the case study? 
 
Rep. Johnson: In part, yes. 
 
Representative Mary Schneider: Are there any other pieces of research your comments 
were based on? 
Rep. Johnson: There are, however limited.  I included this case study as it was the most 
recent.  
 
Rep. Schneider: Are there any case studies out of medical journals? 
 
Rep. Johnson:  Not that I know of. 
 
Representative Gretchen Dobervich: I am concerned about the lack of evidence of impact 
on the developing fetus when a combination of these medications has been administered.  
There is no longitudinal research done on long term impact?  There is just the one case 
study? 
 
Rep. Johnson:  I think there has been more than 1 study. 
   
Rep. Dobervich: Is that information that can be provided? 
 
Rep. Johnson: I can. Per my conversation with Dr. Obervich, he stated progesterone and 
it’s been used for 50 years. In any cases of abortion reversal, none of the babies born 
demonstrated any side effects that is known. 
(0:10:53) 
 
Rep. Dobervich: Even if you could provide links to scientific research that has been done, it 
would be appreciated.  Thank you. 
 
Rep Johnson: Absolutely 
 
Representative Karen Skroch: The focus has been on the damage to the fetus if the 
reversal occurs.  Can you explain the damage to the fetus if the reversal is not allowed? 
  
Rep. Johnson: The fetus starves to death, it dies.  
 
Vice Chairperson Rohr: Any further questions? Seeing none.  Further Supporting 
testimony? 
 
Senator Janne Myrdal, District 10, Co-sponsor of bill: Oral support testimony given, written 
testimony not provided.  
Why are we dealing with abortion any different than any other medical procedure?  As a 
woman, I want all the information surrounding my options. The abortion industry, unable to 
testify today, stated, “This is an undue burden on women”. I would say full medical disclosure 
of any medication I take is not an undue burden!  This bill would give women an opportunity 



House Human Services Committee  
HB 1336 
1/21/2019 
Page 3  
   

to reverse, within 24 hours, the decision of a medical abortion. This not only affects the life 
of the woman but also the life of an unborn child.   
(0:12:01-0:14:41) 
 
Representative Schneider: Would you agree when information is given that it be credible, 
tested, accurate and appropriate. 
 
Senator Myrdal: Yes. The problem, as with any medical issue, medical personnel is very 
loathed to testify due to HIPPA rules.  This issue is also difficult because it is private and 
personal.  With this said, any women I’ve talked to refuse to come forward.  We are in the 
stage of discovering and trying to give the women a choice of reversal. In 2-4 years I believe 
there will be further medical evidence surrounding this. 
 
Vice Chairperson Rohr: Further Testimony in support? 
 
(0:16:02) 
 
Nadia Smetana, Registered Nurse and Director of Dakota Hope Clinic: Oral supporting 
testimony given, information pamphlet provided, see attachment 2 
Simple request for you to think about relating to any area of your life.  Refer to a time you 
immediately regretted something you did and wanted a do-over. 
A lot of women do regret, at some point, the decision of abortion. Surgical abortions are done 
in minutes, there’s no going back on this decision.  Medical abortions are done over a period 
of days, there is a chance to reverse within a certain timeframe. This bill would simply insure 
women know of this option. 
2 reasons I support this bill.  1.) Good evidence, scientific evidence, the use of progesterone 
for reversal is safe and effective.  2.)  It is reasonable and appropriate to respect a woman’s 
right to choose reversal of a medical abortion. 
A chemical/medical abortion is a 2 step process. A pregnant woman must be 9 weeks’ 
gestation to be eligible. 
1.) She will be administered the medication mifepristone in office. Over a period of 2-3 days 
it acts to deprive fetus of blood and oxygen, gradually. 
 2.) 2-3 days after the initial drug, the 2nd drug is taken. This drug starts uterine contraction 
to expel the dead fetus.  The completion of the process takes an additional day or 2.  The 
criteria for reversal: The 2nd drug cannot have been taken. Must be within 0-72 hours after 
ingestion of 1st drug.  An ultrasound must be administered within 72 hours of the reversal 
process to confirm viability. This can be done before or after reversal, after if time is a 
concern. If not viable, stop progesterone. The reversal procedure involves a prescribing 
physician provides supplemental progesterone, the anecdote to the mifepristone.  If the 
pregnancy is viable progesterone will be taken through first trimester. The success rates are 
68% with oral progesterone and 64% with progesterone injections. If only the first drug, 
mifepristone, is administered and the reversal process is withheld, the fetus survival rate is 
25%.  The risk of progesterone and mifepristone causing birth defects to the fetus is 3%, 
which is the same percentage of birth defect risk of the general population.  
Our clinic has addressed the issue of uninsured who may not be able to pay for the reversal 
process. We have partnered with 2 pharmacies and will provide funds to cover the 
progesterone. 
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Vice Chairperson Rohr: What is the cost for the reversal medication? 
 
Nadia Smetana: An average of $500.00, depending upon length of time needed through the 
first trimester. 
 
Representative Greg Westlind: Are the 3% birth defects caused by this drug? 
 
Nadia Smetana: The 3% rate is the same as the general population. There is no increased 
risk of birth defect. 
 
Rep. Westlind: When a fetus is denied up to 72 hours of oxygen or blood do you think there 
is a good chance that there will be some sort of defects? 
 
Nadia Smetana: The observational studies do not show this. 
 
Representative Gretchen Dobervich: You’ve discussed the safety of this however the 
American Medical Association (AMA) and American Congress of Obstetrics and Gynecology 
do not support this.  Why? 
 
Nadia Smetana:  I’ve never understood this.  I’ve read that the concern being the mind 
change. As though it wasn’t thoroughly thought through from the beginning by the pregnant 
woman. However, all women have the right to change their minds.  I have not read any real 
medical reason why they do not support it.   
 
Vice Chairperson Rohr: Any further questions? Seeing none. Further supporting testimony? 
 
Christopher Dodson, ND Catholic Conference: Read supporting testimony, See 
attachment 3 
(0:38:05-0:45:12) 
 
Rep. Dobervich: You stated in your testimony that the FDA has a approved a protocol for 
the use of mifepristone and the other medication.  Is there an FDA approved protocol for the 
use of progesterone in conjunction with mifepristone? 
 
Christopher Dodson:  I do not know. 
 
Representative Mary Schneider: Is any of the information you’ve provided from a medical 
journal? 
 
Christopher Dodson: The information sighted in the fact sheet are peer review, publication 
to scientific studies. 
 
Rep. Schneider: Which one’s are peer reviewed? 
 
Christopher Dodson: I do not know. 
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Rep. Schneider: I agree that women should be informed and have as much information as 
they need to make solid decisions. When the government is dictating what that information 
is, would you agree it needs to be creditable and accurate. 
 
Christopher Dodson: The facts are undisputed.  The question of medical certainty that you 
seek is rarely available and the Supreme Court has recognized that.  The informed consent 
requirements can be factual but not certain.  That would be an impossible burden upon the 
legislatures’. This fits within our informed consent requirements the type of things the 
legislature determines a woman should know.  
 
Rep. Schneider: I’m concerned because we don’t have medical studies.  On something of 
this importance we should.  I think these are observational, which differs from a peer reviewed 
study.  One of them includes 6 people and one is a fact sheet. I’m concerned about the lack 
of medical community support for this, except in the limited groups described. 
 
Christopher Dodson: It is a struggle to get physicians here on time. But we have physicians, 
in ND, whom are familiar with this process and the medications.  We will try to get that 
information to you.  More important, there is no peer reviewed study showing this doesn’t 
work, that it is dangerous to the woman or the child. There is plenty of evidence that shows 
it works and is safe.  The question is; Should women be deprived of the knowledge of the 
availability of reversal? 
 
Vice Chairperson Rohr: Further questions?  Any further support testimony? 
 
Mark Jorritsma, Executive Director of Family Policy Alliance of ND: Read supporting 
testimony, See attachment 4 
(0:51:06-0:56:55) 
 
Vice Chairperson Rohr: Anyone who has further testimony in support, please hand out your 
testimony. 
 
Medora Nagel, Executive Director ND right to life and board member on National Right to 
life committee: Oral supporting testimony given, written testimony not provided. 
In support and recommends a Do Pass. 
 
Donna Henderson, requested to read testimony on behalf of Linda Thorsen. 
 
Vice Chairperson Rohr: I apologize, but we do not allow reading testimony in behalf of an 
individual. 
 
Donna Henderson: I will just pass it out then. See attachment 5, handed out written 
supporting testimony by Linda Thorsen. 
 
Donna Henderson, Citizen: Gave oral testimony, written not received. 
As a citizen, I would like to say I’m in support of this bill as well.  2 points came up during 
testimony I’d like to address.  Rep. Westlind was concerned about lack of blood and 
nourishment causing birth defects.  I have a personal experience involving my pregnancy 
with my twins.  During the pregnancy, my placenta favored one twin vs the other, they were 
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born half a pound weight difference.  We were thankful for 2 healthy baby boys. My point is, 
the gradual nourishment deprivation didn’t cause any birth defects. Comment to Rep. 
Schneider; I would be so upset if I was facing a decision like abortion and was not provided 
all of the information regarding reversal.  We have to have all the information to be able to 
make the right choice. 
 
Vice Chairperson Rohr: Questions? Further Support? 
 
McKenzie McCoy, Citizen from Watford City, Representing the local right to life chapter: 
Gave oral support testimony, written testimony not provided.   
I am a statistic that was not fully informed.  I made a decision to have a medical abortion.  I 
was informed about the discomfort, pain, cramping and issues that could happen.  I was not 
informed that I could reverse the decision I had made.  If I would have been informed that I 
had a 2nd chance to give my child a 2nd chance, I would have taken it.   
 
Vice Chairperson Rohr:  Thank you for your testimony. Any questions? Seeing none. 
Further support? Seeing none.   Anyone here in opposition to HB 1336? 
 
Opposition 
 
Tammi Kromenaker, Director of Red River Women’s Clinic: Read opposed testimony, See 
attachment 6 
 
Vice Chairperson Rohr: Questions? 
 
Representative Karen Skroch: Do You advise women about the medical abortion reversal? 
 
Tammi Kromenaker:  No we do not. 
 
Rep. Skroch: If a woman starts the process and then comes back to you and says I don’t 
think I want to complete this.  Does your facility refer them to someone else to get help with 
that situation? 
 
Tammi Kromenaker: No, I’ve never had a patient request a “reversal”. If they did, I’d be 
honest and say based on scientific research there is nothing reliable that will reverse the 
abortion. 
 
Representative Bill Tveit: In the 3rd paragraph of your testimony it reads, “HB 1336 would 
undermine our ability to have honest conversations with patients about their decision.” Please 
explain what you mean by honest conversations. 
 
Tammi Kromenaker: I think when we are asked to give information that our physicians and 
national organizations have told us is not true we are undermining our relationship with our 
patients. 
 
Rep. Schneider: What is missing?  We have heard a lot of testimony saying it’s ok to give 
progesterone and there were percentages that were successful, with successful births. What 
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do we really look for to show the information given or received is scientifically accurate or 
appropriate? 
 
Tammi Kromenaker: When mandating medical information, we can look to Physicians and 
ACOG for guidance on this.  We need to use those physicians to provide us with the credible 
information to be passed to patients. 
 
Rep. Schneider:  What should be in a study?  Is an observational study ok to rely on? If not, 
why and what do we need? 
 
Tammi Kromenaker: Basic things I know a study should have: controls, should be published 
in a peer review journal, placebo and medication, varying regimens. 
 
Rep. Skroch: Do you realize the difficulty of a blind study asking for a placebo in these 
cases? 
 
Tammi Kromenaker: I am not a researcher and do not know how to put together a study.  
 
Vice Chairperson Rohr: Additional questions?  Seeing none, Thank you. Further opposed 
testimony? 
 
Heidi Seltzler-Echola, Nurse Practitioner in ND:  Provided opposed testimony, See 
attachment 7. 
(1:16:08-1:19:46) 
 
Rep Skroch: I’m aware of the application of progesterone therapy injectable or oral to 
stabilize pregnancies. I’m also aware this is probably well documented.  If this is the case, 
why doesn’t that documentation apply in the medical abortion reversal scenario? 
 
Heidi Seltzler-Echola: You are correct, progesterone is used to prevent miscarriages and 
helps infertility.  It is FDA protocol for this.  However, we don’t have studies showing possible 
complications or interactions with medications. There are also variations between the types 
of progesterone administered; injectable, suppository and oral.  We do not know the safe 
levels or dosage of this.  There is no FDA protocol right now. No medical basis for it. 
 
Rep. Skroch: I would venture to say the doctors performing the reversals are not 
inexperienced nor do I believe they are using random dosing or inexperienced dosage.  This 
is not experimental procedure but instead is backed up by medical practices. 
 
Heidi Seltzler-Echola: Yes, providing progesterone for miscarriage is well established. I 
can’t speak for what doctors are prescribing.  
 
Vice Chairperson Rohr: Further opposing testimony? 
 
Kristie Wolff, Executive Director of ND women’s network: Read opposing Testimony, see 
attachment 8 
(1:23:39-1:25:15) 
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Vice Chairperson Rohr: Neutral testimony? 
 
Andrew Alexis Varvel, citizen of Bismarck district 46: Provided oral and written neutral 
Testimony, See attachment 9.  
Also provided; 
Attachment 10, opposed information- Oral testimony not provided 
Attachment 11, support information- Oral testimony not provided 
 
Vice Chairperson Rohr: Further Neutral testimony?  Seeing none. 
 
Vice Chairperson Rohr closes meeting 
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